

Yaroslav Mudryi National Law University

Department of Civil Law,
Department of Civil and Legal Policy,
intellectual property rights and innovations

**WORKING PROGRAM EDUCATIONAL DISCIPLINES
"CIVIL" RIGHT (PART 2)»**

Level higher education – first (bachelor's) level

Degree higher education –

Bachelor's **Degree knowledge** – 08

"Right" **Specialty** –

081 "Right"

Status educational disciplines – mandatory

Year recruitment – 2023

Kharkiv 2025

Working program educational disciplines "Civil right (Part 2)" : for first-year (bachelor's) level higher education students higher education, field of knowledge 08 "Law", specialty 081 "Law". Kharkiv: Yaroslav Mudryi National Law University, 2025. 48 p.

Developers:

AND. AND. Puchkovska , professor departments civilian rights,
doctor legal sciences, professor,
A. G. Biryukova, Associate Professor of the Department of
Civil Legal Policy, Intellectual Property Law and
Innovations, doctor legal sciences, associate professor ,
N. IN. Korobtsova , associate professor departments civilian rights,
candidate legal sciences, associate professor ,
Yu. THERE ARE. Walk , docent departments civilian rights,
candidate legal sciences, docent,
IN. P. Yanishen , docent departments civilian rights, candidate
legal sciences, docent,
IN. F. Poddubna , associate professor departments civil law policy,
intellectual property rights and innovations ,
candidate legal sciences, associate professor ,
A. M. Isaev, Associate Professor of the Department of Civil Law,
Candidate of Law, Associate Professor

Approved at a joint meeting of the departments
Civil Law No. 1 and Civil Law No. 2
(Minutes No. 10 of June 30, 2020)
Updated edition (with changes and additions)
approved at a joint meeting of the departments
civil law and civil law policy,
intellectual property rights and innovations
(Minutes No. 17 of June 29, 2021)
(Minutes No. 1 dated September 1, 2022)
(Minutes No. 11 dated May 7, 2025)
(Minutes No. 9 of May 20, 2025)

Head of the Department of Civil Law – I. V. Spasio-Fateeva ,
Doctor of Law, Professor
***Head of the Department of Civil Legal Policy,
intellectual property rights and innovations*** – V. L. Yarotsky ,
Doctor of Law, Professor

Content

1.	Description educational disciplines	4
2.	Expected results training	5
3.	Content programs educational disciplines	9
4.	Amount and educational structure disciplines... ..	14
4.1.	For applicants higher education daytime forms training	14
4.2.	For applicants higher education correspondence forms training	16
5.	Forms pedagogical control and means evaluation results training	18
6.	Criteria evaluation results training	19
7.	Pedagogical CONTROL for applicants higher education full-time/part-time forms training	21
8.	Educational and methodological and informational providing educational disciplines... ..	21

1. Description educational disciplines

Work program of the academic discipline "Civil Law (Part 2)" developed in accordance to educational and professional programs "Right" the first (bachelor's) equal higher education industries knowledge 08 "Right" specialties 081 "Right".

Name indicators	Discipline specialty, education level	Didactic structure of the curriculum disciplines	
		day teaching uniform	correspondence teaching form
Number loans ECTS –5.5	Branch knowledge – 08 "Right"	Required	Required
Number modules – 2	Specialty – 081 "Right"	Year of preparation: 2020–2024	Year of preparation: 2020–2024
		semester	semester
Total hours -165		5, 6	5, 6
Weekly hours for daytime forms teaching: classroom – 2–4, independent work student - 6–8.	Level education -first (bachelor's)	Lectures	Lectures
		42 hours	8 hours.
		Practical/ seminar occupation	Practical /seminar occupation
		48 hours	6 hours.
		Independent work	Independent work
		75 hours	151 hours.
		Types of control: current CONTROL; final knowledge control(exam)	Types control: current control; final knowledge control(exam)

Goal teaching educational disciplines – formation subject competencies in field legal regulation personal non-property and property relations that are the subject of civil law, through the acquisition basic legal categories and institutions of the law of obligations, the formation legal thinking, making ability to interpret and analyze norms civilian legislation, acquisition skills practical application theoretical knowledge and civil law norms to specific relationships.

Task:

- students mastering the necessary theoretical provisions about legal nature and content binding legal relations;
- assimilation main concepts CC Ukraine and others acts legislation in field binding legal relations;
- familiarization with judicial practice application norms legislation areas of obligation legal relations;
- acquiring skills in applying the provisions of legislative acts in the field obligations;
- developing skills for creative thinking, self-education, constant increase professional level in field binding legal relations.
- mastering the skills of working with the source base of European Union law in the field of obligations and contract law.

– **Prerequisites** : "Theory of Law", "History of the State and Law of Ukraine", "Constitutional Law", "Logic", "Philosophy", "Language of Ukrainian Jurisprudence", "Economic Theory", "Ukrainian Culture", "History of the State and Law of Foreign Countries", Civil Law (Part 1).

– **Corequisites** : "Constitutional Law", "Administrative Law", "International Law", "Private International Law", "Labor Law", "State Building and Local Self-Government", "State (Constitutional) Law of Foreign Countries".

– **Post details** : "Civil Procedure", "Criminal Procedure", "Criminal Law", "European Union Law", "Labor Law", "Financial Law", "Environmental Law".

2. Expected results teaching

IN result assimilation educational disciplines getter higher education must demonstrate the following results teaching:

RN-1.	Apply legal doctrines, categories, concepts and principles binding rights.
RN -2.	Demonstrate knowledge of the provisions of the obligations and skills apply their on practice.
RN-3.	Have legal terminology in field binding rights.

RN-4	Demonstrate knowledge and identify features of general principles(principles of) execution obligation.
RN-5	Demonstrate knowledge, concept, conditions and types software implementation obligations and skill their differentiate at application in practicalactivities.
RN-6	Demonstrate knowledge and understanding concept and reasons termination obligation.
RN-7	Apply knowledge of the foundations, content, forms of civil law liability for breach of obligation and grounds for it release.
RN-8	Determine problematic legal situations in individual contracts.
RN-9	Demonstrate knowledge of the Principles of European Contract Law (Principles of European Contract Law , PECL, Lando Principles).
RN-10	Reveal the content of the principle of freedom contract and border its implementation impractical activities.
RN-11	Demonstrate knowledge of the concept, content, features, and types obligations, What arise in communication with by transmission property in property.
RN-12	Demonstrate knowledge of the concept, content, features and types obligations arising from the transfer of property inuse.
RN-13	Demonstrate knowledge of the concept, content, features and types obligations that arise in communication with execution works.
RN-14	Demonstrate knowledge of the concept, content, features, and types obligations, What related with by providing services.
RN-15	Ability to reveal concept, content and types transport obligations.
RN-16	Demonstrate knowledge protection property interests persons in insurance legal relations.
RN-17	Demonstrate knowledge of the Principles of European Insurance Contract Law (Principles of European Insurance Contract Law , PEICL).
RN-18	Demonstrate knowledge of the delimitation of commission agreements,authorization and management property.
RN-19	Demonstrate knowledge of the concept, content, features, and types obligations of order rights intellectual property.
RN-20	Demonstrate knowledge of the concept, content, features, and types obligations, What arise from common activities.
RN-21	Demonstrate knowledge of common characteristics and skills of differentiationcontractual and not contractual obligations.
RN-22	Demonstrate knowledge and understanding of tort obligations andtheir features legal regulation.
RN-23	Determine relationships between economical development society and changes in the regulation of personal non-property and property rights legal relations.

RN-24	Apply logical, critical, and systematic analysis of civil legal documents.
RN-25	Demonstrate knowledge rules, methods, techniques and means of legal techniques.
RN-26	Demonstrate the ability to find and apply legal positions Supreme To the Court, Constitutional Court Ukraine, European court with rights human at solution practical tasks.
RN-27	Demonstrate the ability to work with primary sources of EU Law on the websites of EU Law "EUR-LEX" https://eur-lex.europa.eu/ and the Court of Justice of the EU "CURIA" https://curia.europa.eu/ .
RN-28	Demonstrate knowledge of the Principles of European Tort Law (Principles of European Case Law , PETL).

Teaching an academic discipline ensures the formation of general and special competencies in a higher education applicant and the achievement of learning outcomes defined by the higher education standard of the relevant specialty and the educational and professional program "Law", namely:

General competencies :

ZK 1. Ability for abstract thinking, analysis and synthesis.

ZK 2. Ability apply knowledge in practical situations. GC 3. Ability to use information and communication technologies.

GC 4. The ability to act based on ethical considerations (motives).

ZK 5. Skills collection and analysis information with national and international sources.

GC 6. Ability to work productively and actively interact in a virtual team (virtual collaboration).

Special competencies :

SK 1. Ability to apply knowledge of the basics of the theory and philosophy of law, knowledge and understanding structures legal professions and its roles in society.

SK 2. Ability to carry out a comparative analysis of individual legal institutions of the law of the European Union and the Council of Europe and the legal system of Ukraine.

SC 3. Ability to apply the norms and institutions of law, at least from such

areas as: constitutional law, administrative law and administrative procedural law, civil and civil procedural law, labor law, criminal and criminal procedural law.

SK 4. Ability to apply legal principles and doctrines.

SK 5. Ability to use databases of justice bodies and information technologies necessary for carrying out legal activities.

SK 6. Ability to use a variety of information sources to fully and comprehensively establish certain circumstances.

SK 7. Ability to analyze legal issues and justify legal positions.

SK 8. Ability to critically and systematically analyze legal phenomena.

SK 9. Ability to logical, critical and systemic analysis documents, understanding their legal character and value.

SK 10. Knowledge systems rights and legislation, and also mechanisms legal regulation in different industries rights.

SK 11. The ability to determine the specifics of private and public law in accordance with their subject matter and methods of legal regulation.

SK 12. Ability to make decisions on legal matters in accordance with current legislation.

Results teaching:

PH 1. Determine the persuasiveness of arguments in the process of evaluating previously unknown conditions and circumstances.

PH 2. Know and understand international human rights standards, the provisions of the Convention for the Protection of Human Rights and Fundamental Freedoms, as well as the practice of the European Court of Human Rights and the Court of Justice of the EU .

PH 3. Provide a brief legal opinion on individual factual circumstances with sufficient justification.

PH 4. Compile and coordinate a plan for one's own applied research and independently collect materials from specified sources.

PH 5. Independently determine the circumstances in which assistance is needed, and act in accordance with the recommendations received.

PH 6. Have basic rhetoric skills.

PH 7. Use statistical information obtained from primary and secondary sources

for legal activities.

PH 8. Use computer programs necessary for legal activities.

PH 9. Free to use for professional activities are available informational technology and bases data.

PH 10. Work in a team, ensuring the completion of team tasks.

PH 11. Apply in professional activities the main modern legal doctrines, values, and principles of the functioning of the national legal system.

PH 12. Explain the nature and content of basic legal phenomena and processes.

R N 13. Identify and analyze legally significant facts and draw sound legal conclusions.

RN 14. Analyze the issue of the feasibility of using alternative means in resolving legal conflicts and disputes.

RN 15. Demonstrate the ability to apply acquired legal knowledge in the context of independent legal decision-making in accordance with their professional statuses.

PH 16. Apply acquired knowledge in standard and non-standard professional situations using reproduction and reconstruction methods.

3. Content of the academic discipline program

Module 1. General provisions on obligations and the contract. Obligations arising in connection with the transfer of property into ownership, use and in connection with the performance of work.

Obligatory law and obligations. Concept, general characteristics and functions of the law of obligations. System of the law of obligations. Concept of obligation, its content and grounds for its emergence. Subjects in an obligation. Replacement of parties in an obligation. Third party in an obligation. Types of obligations.

Fulfillment of an obligation. Concept and general conditions for fulfilling an obligation. Subjects and subject of fulfilling an obligation. Method, term (term) and place of fulfilling an obligation. Confirmation of fulfilling an obligation.

Securing the performance of an obligation. General characteristics of types of securing the performance of an obligation. Penalty. Deposit. Surety. Guarantee. Pledge.

Retention . Trust property.

Termination of obligations . Concept and general characteristics of termination of obligations. Grounds for termination of obligations. Performance of an obligation. Transfer of a set-off by the debtor to the creditor. Set-off of counter-homogeneous claims. Termination of obligations by agreement of the parties. Novation and its scope of application. Termination of obligations by debt forgiveness. Inability to fulfill an obligation as a ground for its termination. Combination of the debtor and the creditor in one person as a ground for termination of an obligation. Death of an individual or liquidation of a legal entity is a ground for termination of an obligation.

Legal consequences of breach of obligation. Liability for breach of obligation. Concept and legal consequences of breach of obligation. Concept and conditions of liability for breach of obligation; grounds for release. Liability for breach of monetary obligation.

Civil law contract. Concept, general characteristics and meaning of a civil law contract. Freedom of contract and its limits. Types of contracts. Public contract. Accession contract. Preliminary contract. Contract for the benefit of a third party. Mixed contract. Content of the contract. Typical terms of the contract. Interpretation of the terms of the contract. Form of the contract. Procedure and stages of concluding a contract. Offer. Acceptance. Pre-contractual disputes. Conclusion of contracts on exchanges, auctions, competitions. Amendment and termination of the contract. Public procurement under EU law . Pre-contractual obligations and liability for their breach under EU law.

Purchase and sale agreement. General provisions on the purchase and sale agreement. Rights and obligations of the parties under the agreement. Types of purchase and sale agreements. Retail purchase and sale agreement. Consumer protection under EU law. Supply agreement. Contract for the contracting of agricultural products. Contract for the supply of energy and other resources through a connected network. Exchange agreement.

Donation contract . Concept, subject, form of a donation contract and its types. Rights and obligations of the parties under the contract. Donation contract with the condition of transferring the gift in the future. Donation contract with the imposition of an obligation on the donee in favor of a third party. Termination of the contract at the

request of the donor. Concept, subject and form of a donation contract. Parties to a donation contract. Donor rights .

Rent agreement . Concept, subject, form of rent agreement. Parties to a rent agreement, their rights and obligations. Types of rent.

Lifetime maintenance (care) contract. Concept, subject, form of a lifetime maintenance (care) contract. Parties to the contract, their rights and obligations. Legal consequences of terminating the contract. Transfer of rights and obligations under the contract.

Lease agreement. Concept, subject and term of a lease agreement. Parties to a lease agreement, their rights and obligations. Rights of third parties to a thing leased. Legal consequences of changing the owner of a thing leased. Sublease . Termination of a lease agreement. Certain types of lease agreements.

Housing rental (lease) agreement . The concept of a housing rental (lease) agreement and its types. Subject and form of a commercial housing rental (lease) agreement. Parties to the agreement, their rights and obligations. Housing rental with redemption.

Loan agreement. Concept, subject, form and term of a loan agreement. Content of a loan agreement. Termination of the agreement. Termination of the agreement.

Contract . Concept and types of contract. Parties to the contract, their rights and obligations. Terms in the contract. Procedure for payment for work. Settlements between the parties in the event of accidental destruction of the subject of the contract or impossibility of completing the work. Quality and guarantees of the quality of work. Types of contract. Household contract. Construction contract. Contract for design and exploration work.

Contract for the performance of scientific research or development and technological works . The concept and subject of contracts for the performance of scientific research, development and technological works. Parties to the contract, their rights and obligations. Risks and liability of the parties under the contract.

Module 2. Obligations related to the provision of services. Obligations regarding the disposal of intellectual property rights. Obligations arising from joint activities. Non-contractual obligations.

Service contract . Types of service contracts. Terms of service contracts. Parties to the contract, their rights and obligations. Content of the service contract and its execution.

Contract of carriage. Contract of carriage of goods. Procedure for conclusion and form of the contract. Parties to the contract, their rights and obligations. Legal status of the recipient. Long-term contract. Charter contract (freighting). Features of cargo transportation by various modes of transport. Liability of the parties for breach of the terms of the contract. Grounds and limits of the carrier's liability. Claims and lawsuits in transport obligations. Contract of carriage of passengers and luggage. Package tours and related travel organization services under EU law.

Freight forwarding contract. Concept and general characteristics of a freight forwarding contract; elements of the contract. Rights and obligations of the parties. Termination of the contract. Liability of the parties.

Storage agreement. Concept, subject and form of a storage agreement. Parties to the agreement, their rights and obligations. Storage of things defined by generic features. Responsibility of the custodian under a storage agreement. Warehouse storage agreement. Special types of storage. Security agreement.

Agency agreement. The concept of "agency agreement". Parties to the agency agreement, their rights and obligations. Cancellation of the agency agreement. Term of the agreement. Termination of the agreement and its consequences.

Commission agreement. Concept and terms of a commission agreement. Parties to the agreement, their rights and obligations. Execution of the agreement. Sub-commission .

Property management agreement. Concept, subject and form of a property management agreement. Essential terms of the agreement. Term of the agreement. Parties to the agreement, their rights and obligations. Liability of the manager. Termination of the agreement.

Insurance contract. Concept, subject and form of an insurance contract. Parties to an insurance contract, their rights and obligations. Conclusion of an insurance contract in favor of a third party. Essential terms of the contract. Property insurance contract. Civil liability insurance contract. Concept and types of personal insurance obligations.

Loan agreement. Concept, subject and form of a loan agreement. Parties to the

agreement, their rights and obligations; contesting the loan agreement. Securing the fulfillment of the obligation by the borrower. Novation of debt into a loan obligation.

Credit agreement. Concept, parties and form of a credit agreement. Rights and obligations of the parties under the agreement. Commercial credit. Legal regulation of a consumer credit agreement taking into account EU law.

Bank deposit agreement. Concept, parties and form of a bank deposit agreement. Types of bank deposits. Bank deposit agreement in favor of a third party. Deposit guarantee schemes under EU law.

Bank account agreement . The concept and subject of a bank account agreement. Parties to the agreement, their rights and obligations. Termination of a bank account agreement. Banking secrecy.

Factoring agreement. The concept and subject of a factoring agreement. Parties to a factoring agreement, their rights and obligations.

Settlement obligations. Concept and forms of settlements. Legal regulation of cash and non-cash settlements.

Agreements on the disposal of intellectual property rights. License for the use of an intellectual property right object. License agreement. Agreement on the custom creation and use of an intellectual property right object. Agreement on the transfer of exclusive intellectual property rights. Commercial concession agreement.

Agreement on joint activities. General characteristics and grounds for the emergence of obligations arising from joint activities, their types. The concept of "simple partnership agreement". Contributions and common property of participants in a simple partnership. The concept of "founding agreement". General characteristics.

Non-contractual obligations. Obligations from a public promise of remuneration and their types. The concept and purpose of obligations arising from actions in the property interests of another person without his authorization. The concept, purpose and subjects of obligations arising from saving the health and life of an individual, the property of an individual or a legal entity. The concept of "obligation to eliminate a threat to the life, health, property of an individual or the property of a legal entity". Obligations arising from causing harm. General grounds for liability for property and moral damage caused. Taking into account the guilt of the victim and the financial situation of the individual who caused the harm. Features of compensation for damage

caused by a person in the event of his exercise of the right to self-defense; in the event of the adoption of a law on the termination of the right of ownership of certain property; in a state of extreme necessity; damage caused by a state authority, an authority of the Autonomous Republic of Crimea, a local government body or their official or servant; damage caused by illegal decisions, actions or inaction of a body carrying out operational-search activities, pre-trial investigation; a source of increased danger; a person who insured his civil liability; damage caused by injury, other damage to health or death. Compensation for nuclear damage. Compensation for damage caused as a result of defects in goods, works (services). Principles of European tort law (PETL). Concept and subjects of obligations to acquire and preserve property without sufficient legal basis. Return in kind of unjustly acquired property. Compensation of income from unjustly acquired property and expenses for its maintenance. Unjustly acquired property that is not subject to return. Principles, definitions and model rules of European private law (DCFR).

4. Amount and structure educational disciplines

4.1. For applicants higher education daytime forms teaching

No. n/a	Date carrying out (in accordance with schedule)	Subject course educational	Amount in hours			
			Total	In that number		
				Lectures	Practical occupation, seminar occupation, colloquiums etc.	Stand aloneon work
		Module 1. General provisions on obligations and the contract. Obligations arising in connection with the transfer of property into ownership, use and in connection with the performance of work.				
		Topic 1. Mandatory rightand obligation	8	2	2	4
		Topic 2 . Implementation obligation	7	2	2	3
		Topic 3. Provision implementation obligation	8	2	2	4
		Topic 4 . Legal consequencesviolation obligation	7	2	2	3

		Topic 5. Termination obligation	7	2	2	3
		Topic 6. General position about contract	10	2	4	4
		Topic 7. Contract purchases-sales. Types contract buying and selling	9	2	4	3
		Topic 8. Contract gift. Annuity agreement . Agreement lifelong maintenance (care).	9	2	2	5
		Topic 9. Contracts with transmission property for use: general provisions on rental (rent), types	8	2	2	4
		contract hiring (rent), Lease agreement housing				
		Topic 10. Contract subcontract: general position about suborder, types contract contract.	2	2		
		<i>Together</i>	75	20	22	33
		Module 2. Commitment, What related with by providing services. Obligation of property management rights intellectual property. Commitment that arise from a common activities. Non-contractual obligation.				
		Topic 1. Contract transportation. Transport contract forwarding.	10	2	4	4
		Topic 2. Contract storage.	8	2	2	4
		Topic 3. Agency agreement. Commission agreement . Agreement Management property	8	2	2	4
		Topic 4. Insurance obligation	8	2	2	4
		Topic 5. Contract loans. Credit agreement. Agreement bank deposit (deposit). Agreement factoring. Order and forms of non-cash calculations	8	2	2	4
		Topic 6. Orders property rights intellectual property. Contract commercial concessions.	7	2	2	3
		Topic 7. Contract about common activity	8	2	2	4

		Topic 8. General provisions about non-negotiable obligation. Public promise of reward. Doing actions in property interests of another person without his authorization.	7	2	2	3
		Topic 9. Saving health and life physical persons, property physical and legal entity. Creation threats life, health, property physical person or property of a legal entity person. Acquisition, preservation property without sufficient legal grounds.	8	2	2	4
		Topic 10. Reimbursement harm	90	4	6	8
		<i>Together</i>		22	26	42
		Total hours / loansECTS	165/5.5	42	48	75

4.2. For applicants higher education correspondence forms teaching

No. n/a	Date carrying out (in accordance with schedule)	Subject of the study course	Amount in hours			
			Total	In that number		
				Lectures	Practical occupation, seminar occupation, colloquiums etc.	Stand aloneon work
		Module 1. General provisions on obligations and the contract. Obligations arising in connection with the transfer of property into ownership, use and in connection with the performance of work.				
		Topic 1. Mandatory rightand obligation	12	2	2	8
		Topic 2. Execution obligation	7	-	-	7
		Topic 3. Provision implementation obligation	8	-	-	8
		Topic 4. Legal consequencesviolation obligation	7	-	-	7
		Topic 5. Termination obligation	7	-	-	7
		Topic 6. General position about contract	8	-	-	8

		Topic 7. Contract purchases-sales. Types contract buying and selling	11	2	2	7
		Topic 8. Contract gift. Annuity agreement . Agreement lifelong maintenance (care).	7	-	-	7
		Topic 9. Contracts with transmission property for use: general provisions on rental (rent), types contract hiring (rent), Contract rental (rent) housing	8	-	-	8
		Topic 10. Contract subcontract: general position about suborder, types contract contract.	8	-	-	8
		<i>Together</i>	83	4	4	75
		Module 2. Obligation, What related with by providing Services. Commitment to disposition rights intellectual property. Commitment that arise from common activities. Non-negotiable obligation.				
		Topic 1. Contract transportation. Transport contract forwarding.	10	2	-	8
		Topic 2. Contract storage.	8	-	-	8
		Topic 3. Contract authorization. Commission agreement . Agreement management property	7	-	-	7
		Topic 4. Insurance obligation	7	-	-	7
		Topic 5. Contract loans. Credit agreement. Agreement bank deposit (deposit). Agreement entfactoring. Order and forms of non-cash calculations	8	-	-	8
		Topic 6 . Order property rights intellectual Property. Contract commercial concessions.	7	-	-	7
		Topic 7. Contract about common activity	7	-	-	7

		Topic 8. General provisions about non-negotiable obligation. Public promise of reward. Doing actions in property interests of another person without his authorization.	12	2	2	8
		Topic 9. Saving health and life physical persons, property physical and legal entity. Creation threats life, health, property physical person or property of a legal entity person. Acquisition, preservation property without sufficient legal grounds.	7	-	-	7
		Topic 10. Reimbursement harm	9	-	-	9
		<i>Together</i>	82	4	2	76
		Total hours / loansECTS	165/5.5	8	6	151

5. Forms pedagogical control and means evaluation learning outcomes

Assessment of the results of mastering the academic discipline " Civil Law (Part 2) " involves conducting current and final control and is carried out on the basis of a cumulative point-rating system.

Current knowledge control includes:

- quality control of students' mastery of the program material of the academic discipline during *practical classes* using the following means: oral, written or express survey, solving practical tasks or problems, participation in the development of a case, defense of an essay or abstract at the initiative of the student. Current control aims to check the level of preparation of the student for studying the current material. During the practical class, the student can receive a grade on a four-point scale (0, 3, 4, 5);

- quality control of students' mastery of the program material of the academic discipline, which is carried out at the end of the modules in the form of a test, test paper or colloquium;

- Students complete tasks for *independent work during the semester* (preparation of a presentation, essay, abstract, etc.). The maximum number of points for independent work is 10.

The form of *final control* of knowledge of higher education applicants in the academic discipline is an exam. The maximum number of points that a student can receive for the exam is 60. The minimum score of the results of the current control and independent work, which allows a student to take the exam, is 20 points.

Distribution of points between forms of organization of the educational process and types of control measures:

Current control				Independent work of students	Final control (exam)	Final knowled ge assessm
Module No. 1		Module No. 2				
p/s	final result	p/s	final report			

						ent
max 10	max 5	max 10	max 5	max 10	max 60	max 100

6. Criteria for assessing learning outcomes

Type of control	Number of points	Criteria (for each assessment)
Current control in a practical lesson	Max 5	Excellent mastery of the educational material on the topic, some minor shortcomings are possible
	4	Good understanding of the topic, but there are some errors
	3	Satisfactory level of mastery of the material, a significant number of errors
	Min 0	Unsatisfactory level of material acquisition
Final test	Mach 5	The results of processing the material are high, a small number of minor errors are possible
	4	Good understanding of the topic, but there are some errors
	3	Satisfactory level of mastery of the material, a significant number of minor errors
	2	Satisfactory level of understanding of the material, a significant number of significant errors
	1	Gaps in knowledge, the student has a poor grasp of the work material
	Min 0	Unsatisfactory level of material acquisition
Assessment of student independent work	Mach 10	Deep knowledge of problems related to the research topic, fluent command of the material, ability to think independently and creatively, find, generalize, analyze material, and draw independent theoretical and practical conclusions
	8	The work reveals the main provisions of the topic, but there are some inaccuracies in the presentation of the material, theoretical concepts are not sufficiently supported by factual data.
	6	The main points of the topic are covered, but some issues are not covered fully. The student has a good command of the material, but lacks creativity and independence in research.
	4	The main theoretical issues are covered superficially, there are no conclusions or the conclusions are not independent; the student has a poor grasp of the material
	2	The main points of the topic are covered superficially, theoretical points are not supported by factual material; there are no conclusions; the student has a poor grasp of the material of the work
	0	The main points of the topic are covered superficially, with a large number of errors; there are no conclusions; the student does not have a good grasp of the material of the work
Exam	Mach 60	1. Comprehensive, systematic and in-depth knowledge of the material provided by the curriculum of the academic

		<p>discipline, including orientation in the basic scientific doctrines and concepts of the discipline.</p> <p>2. Mastering the main and additional literature recommended by the department.</p> <p>3. Ability to independently replenish knowledge in the discipline and use the acquired knowledge in practical work</p>
	55	<p>1. Complete knowledge of the material provided by the curriculum of the academic discipline.</p> <p>2. Mastering the main literature and getting acquainted with additional literature recommended by the department.</p> <p>3. Ability to self-sow replenishment of knowledge in the discipline, understanding its importance for practical work</p>
	50	<p>1. Sufficiently complete knowledge of the material provided for in the curriculum of the academic discipline, provided that there are no significant inaccuracies in the answer .</p> <p>2. Mastering the basic literature recommended by the department.</p> <p>3. Ability to independently replenish knowledge in the discipline, understanding its importance for practical work</p>
	45	<p>1. Knowledge of the basic material provided for by the curriculum of the academic discipline, in an amount sufficient for further study and future professional work .</p> <p>2. Mastering the basic literature recommended by the department.</p> <p>3. Errors and significant inaccuracies in the answer to the exam in the presence of knowledge for them self- removal or with the help of a teacher</p>
	40	<p>1. Knowledge of the basic material provided for by the curriculum of the academic discipline, in an amount sufficient for further study and future professional work.</p> <p>2. Familiarization with the basic literature recommended by the department.</p> <p>3. Errors in the exam answer if you have the knowledge to eliminate the most significant ones with the help of a teacher</p>
	35	<p>1. Gaps in knowledge of certain parts of the basic material provided for by the curriculum of the academic discipline .</p> <p>2. The presence of errors in the exam answer.</p>
	0	<p>1. Lack of knowledge of a significant part of the basic material provided for in the curriculum of the academic discipline .</p> <p>2. Inability to continue education or to carry out professional activity without taking a repeat course in this discipline</p>

7. Pedagogical control for higher education students
full-time/part-time teaching

Scale of final pedagogical control

Rating on the ECTS scale	Definition	Rating on a national scale	Rating on the 100-point scale used in the New Zealand Law School
AND	Excellent – excellent performance, with only a small number of errors	5	90–100
IN	Very good – above average with a few errors	4	80–89
WITH	Good – generally correct work with a certain number of minor errors		75–79
D	Satisfactory – not bad, but with a significant number of shortcomings	3	70–74
THERE ARE	Sufficient – performance meets minimum criteria		60–69
FX	Unsatisfactory - needs work before reassembling	2	35–59
F	Unsatisfactory – serious further work is required, mandatory re-course		0 – 34

8. Educational, methodological and informational support academic discipline

Regulatory and legal acts

1. UN Convention on Contracts for the International Sale of Goods of 11.04.1980. URL: http://zakon2.rada.gov.ua/laws/show/995_003.
2. Constitution of Ukraine: Fundamental Law of Ukraine dated 28.06.1996 No. 254k/96-BP. URL: <https://zakon.rada.gov.ua/laws/show/254%D0%BA/96-%D0%B2%D1%80#Text>
3. Civil Code of Ukraine: Law of Ukraine dated 16.01.2003 . No. 435-IV. Update date: 01.08.2022. URL: <https://zakon.rada.gov.ua/laws/show/435-15#Text>
4. On the execution of decisions and application of the practice of the European Court of Human Rights: Law of Ukraine dated 23.02.2006 No. 3477-IV. URL: <http://zakon1.rada.gov.ua/laws/show/3477-15>
5. law : Law of Ukraine dated 23.06.2005 No. 2709 - IV . URL : <https://zakon.rada.gov.ua/laws/show/2709-15>
6. On international treaties of Ukraine: Law of Ukraine dated 29.06.2004 No. 1906-IV. URL: <https://zakon.rada.gov.ua/laws/show/1906-15>

7. Commercial Code of Ukraine : Law of Ukraine of 01/16/2003 No. 436-IV . Update date: 08/01/2022. URL: <https://zakon.rada.gov.ua/laws/show/436-15/card2#Card>
8. Civil Procedure Code of Ukraine: Law of Ukraine dated March 18, 2004, as amended by Law of Ukraine dated October 3, 2017, No. 2147-VIII. URL: <https://zakon.rada.gov.ua/laws/show/1618-15#Text>
9. On the State Budget of Ukraine for 2023: Law of Ukraine dated 03.11.2022 No. 2710-IX. URL: <https://zakon.rada.gov.ua/laws/card/2710-20>
10. Code of Ukraine on Bankruptcy Procedures : Law of Ukraine dated October 18, 2018 No. 2597-VIII. Update date: 01/12/2022. URL: <https://zakon.rada.gov.ua/laws/card/2597-19>
11. On pledge: Law of Ukraine dated 02.10.1992 No. 2654-XII . Update date: 06.10.2021. URL: <https://zakon.rada.gov.ua/laws/show/2654-12#Text>
12. On Mortgage: Law of Ukraine dated 05.06.2003 No. 898-IV. Update date: 17.03.2022. URL: <https://zakon.rada.gov.ua/laws/show/898-15#Text>
13. On securing creditors' claims and registration of encumbrances: Law of Ukraine dated 18.11.2003 No. 1255-IV. Update date: 01.07.2021. URL: <https://zakon.rada.gov.ua/laws/show/1255-15#Text> (date of application: 04.08.2022).
14. On mortgage bonds: Law of Ukraine dated 12/22/2005 No. 3273-IV. Update date: 08/05/2021. URL: <https://zakon.rada.gov.ua/laws/show/3273-15#Text>
15. On state registration of real rights to real estate and their encumbrances: Law of Ukraine dated 01.07.2004 No. 1952-IV. Update date: 26.07.2022. URL: <https://zakon.rada.gov.ua/laws/show/1952-15#Text>
16. On the Protection of Consumer Rights: Law of the Ukrainian SSR of May 12, 1991 No. 1023-XII as amended by the Law of Ukraine of December 1, 2005 No. 3161-IV. URL: <https://zakon.rada.gov.ua/laws/show/1023-12#Text>
17. On liability for damage caused by a defect in a product: Law of Ukraine dated May 19, 2011. URL: <https://zakon.rada.gov.ua/laws/show/3390-17>.

18. On Amendments to the Law of Ukraine “On the Quality and Safety of Food Products and Food Raw Materials”: Law of Ukraine dated 06.09.2005. URL: <http://zakon1.rada.gov.ua/laws/show/2809-15>.
19. On the basic principles and requirements for the safety and quality of food products: Law of Ukraine of 23.12.1997 URL: <https://zakon.rada.gov.ua/laws/show/771/97-bp>.
20. On Standardization: Law of Ukraine dated 05.06.2014. URL: <https://zakon.rada.gov.ua/laws/show/1315-18>.
21. On technical regulations and conformity assessment: Law of Ukraine dated January 15, 2015. URL: <https://zakon.rada.gov.ua/laws/show/124-19>.
22. On banks and banking activities: Law of 07.12.2000 No. 2121-III. URL: <https://zakon.rada.gov.ua/laws/show/2121-14>
23. On currency and currency transactions: Law of 21.06.2018 No. 2473-VIII. URL: <https://zakon.rada.gov.ua/laws/show/2473-19#Text>
24. On Amendments to Certain Legislative Acts of Ukraine on Improving State Registration of Rights to Real Estate and Protection of Property Rights: Law of Ukraine No. 1666-VIII of 06.10.2016. Update Date: 07.11.2018. URL: <https://zakon.rada.gov.ua/laws/show/1666-19#Text>
25. On electronic commerce: Law of Ukraine dated 03.09.2015 No. 675-VIII. URL: <https://zakon.rada.gov.ua/laws/show/675-19#Text>
26. On electronic trust services: Law of Ukraine dated 05.10.2017 No. 2155 VIII. Legislation of Ukraine / Verkhovna Rada of Ukraine. URL: <https://zakon.rada.gov.ua/laws/show/2155-19>
27. On enforcement proceedings: Law of Ukraine dated 02.06.2016 No. 1404-VIII. Update date: 19.07.2022. URL: <https://zakon.rada.gov.ua/laws/show/1404-19#Text>
28. On Amendments to Certain Legislative Acts of Ukraine on the Regulation of Relations between Creditors and Consumers of Financial Services: Law of Ukraine No. 3795-VI of September 22, 2011. Update date: October 21, 2019. URL: <https://zakon.rada.gov.ua/laws/show/3795-17#Text>

29. On prevention and counteraction to the legalization (laundering) of proceeds from crime, the financing of terrorism and the financing of the proliferation of weapons of mass destruction: Law of Ukraine dated 06.12.2019 No. 361-IX. URL: <https://zakon.rada.gov.ua/laws/show/361-20>

30. On capital markets and organized commodity markets: Law of Ukraine dated 23.02.2006 No. 3480 IV Legislation of Ukraine / Verkhovna Rada of Ukraine. URL: <https://zakon.rada.gov.ua/laws/show/3480-15#Text>.

31. On the electricity market: Law of Ukraine dated 13.04.2017 No. 2019 VIII. Legislation of Ukraine / Verkhovna Rada of Ukraine. URL: <https://zakon.rada.gov.ua/laws/show/2019-19#Text>

32. On the natural gas market: Law of Ukraine dated 09.04.2015 No. 329 VIII. Legislation of Ukraine / Verkhovna Rada of Ukraine. URL: <https://zakon.rada.gov.ua/laws/show/329-19#Text>.

33. On security activities: Law of Ukraine dated 22.03.2012 No. 4616-VI. Bulletin of the Verkhovna Rada of Ukraine. 2013. No. 2. Art. 8. URL: <https://zakon.rada.gov.ua/laws/show/4616-17#Tex>

34. On the lease of state and municipal property: Law of Ukraine dated 03.10.2019 No. 157-IX. URL: <https://zakon.rada.gov.ua/laws/show/157-20#Text>

35. On Financial Services and State Regulation of Financial Services Markets: Law of Ukraine dated 12.07.2001 No. 2664-III. Update date: 01.08.2022. URL: <https://zakon.rada.gov.ua/laws/show/2664-14#Text>

36. On financial services and financial companies: Law of Ukraine dated 14.12.2021 No. 1953-IX. URL: <https://zakon.rada.gov.ua/laws/show/1953-20#Text>

37. On the National Bank of Ukraine: Law of Ukraine dated 05/20/1999 No. 679-XIV. Update date: 06/15/2022. URL: <https://zakon.rada.gov.ua/laws/show/679-14#Text>

38. On payment systems and money transfers in Ukraine: Law of Ukraine dated 05.04.2001 No. 2346-III. Update date: 13.02.2022. URL: <https://zakon.rada.gov.ua/laws/show/2346-14#Text>

39. On liability for untimely fulfillment of monetary obligations: Law of Ukraine dated 22.11.1996 No. 543/96-BP. URL: <https://zakon.rada.gov.ua/laws/show/543/96-%D0%B2%D1%80#Text>
40. On virtual assets: Law of Ukraine dated February 17, 2022 No. 2074-IX. URL: <https://zakon.rada.gov.ua/laws/show/2074-20#Text>
41. On payment services: Law of Ukraine dated 30.06.2021 No. 1591-IX. URL: <https://zakon.rada.gov.ua/laws/show/1591-20#Text>
42. On the privatization of the state housing stock: Law of Ukraine No. 2482-XII dated June 16, 1992. URL: <https://zakon.rada.gov.ua/laws/show/2482-12#Text>
43. On the system of guaranteeing deposits of individuals: Law of Ukraine dated 23.02.2012 No. 4452-VI. URL: <https://zakon.rada.gov.ua/laws/show/4452-17#Text>
44. On licensing of types of economic activity: Law of Ukraine dated 02.03.2015 No. 222 VIII. Legislation of Ukraine / Verkhovna Rada of Ukraine. URL: <https://zakon.rada.gov.ua/laws/show/222-19#Text>
45. On electronic documents and electronic document flow: Law of Ukraine dated 22.05.2003 No. 851-IV. URL: <http://zakon1.rada.gov.ua/laws/show/851-15>
46. On effective management of property rights of rightholders in the field of copyright and (or) related rights: Law of Ukraine dated 15.05.2018 No. 2415-VIII. URL: <https://zakon.rada.gov.ua/laws/show/2415-19>
47. On housing and communal services: Law of Ukraine dated 09.11.2017 No. 2189-VIII. URL: <https://zakon.rada.gov.ua/laws/show/2189-19#Text>
48. On financial and credit mechanisms and property management in housing construction and real estate transactions: Law of Ukraine dated 06/19/2003 No. 978-I. Update date: 12/01/2020. URL: <https://zakon.rada.gov.ua/laws/show/978-15#Text>
49. On insurance: Law of Ukraine dated 07.03.1996 No. 85/96-BP as amended by the Law of Ukraine dated 04.10.2001 No. 2745-III. URL:

<https://zakon.rada.gov.ua/laws/show/85/96-%D0%B2%D1%80#TextOn> notary:
Law of Ukraine dated 02.09.1993 No. 3425-XII. Update date: 15.12.2021. URL:
<https://zakon.rada.gov.ua/laws/show/3425-12#Text>

50. On financial leasing: Law of Ukraine dated 04.02.2021 No. 1201 IX.
Legislation of Ukraine / Verkhovna Rada of Ukraine. URL:
<https://zakon.rada.gov.ua/laws/show/1201-20#n231>.

51. On Consumer Lending: Law of Ukraine dated 15.11.2016 No. 1734-
VIII. URL: <https://zakon.rada.gov.ua/laws/show/1734-19#Text>

52. On preventing the impact of the global financial crisis on the
development of the construction industry and housing construction: Law of
Ukraine dated 25.12.2008 No. 800-VI. URL:
<https://zakon.rada.gov.ua/laws/show/800-17#Text>

53. On Ukraine's accession to the Geneva Convention of 1930, which
introduced the Unified Law on Bills of Exchange and Promissory Notes: Law of
Ukraine No. 826-XIV of 06.07.1999. URL:
<https://zakon.rada.gov.ua/laws/show/826-14#Text>

54. On the Deposit Guarantee System of Individuals: Law of Ukraine
dated 02/23/2012 No. 4452-VI. Update date: 04/13/2022. URL:
<https://zakon.rada.gov.ua/laws/show/4452-17>

55. On the Association of Co-Owners of an Apartment Building: Law of
Ukraine No. 2866-III of November 29, 2001. URL:
<http://zakon2.rada.gov.ua/laws/show/2866-14>.

56. On the improvement of populated areas: Law of Ukraine dated
06.09.2005 No. 2807-IV. URL: <https://zakon.rada.gov.ua/laws/show/2807-15#Text>

57. On scientific and scientific-technical activities: Law of Ukraine dated
26.11.2015 No. 848-VIII. Update date: 06.04.2022. URL: [https://zakon.rada.gov.ua / laws / show /848-19](https://zakon.rada.gov.ua/laws/show/848-19)

58. On the Fundamentals of Urban Planning: Law of Ukraine dated 16.11.1992 No. 2780-XII. Update date: 16.10.2020. URL: <https://zakon.rada.gov.ua/laws/show/2780-12>
59. On the Regulation of Urban Planning Activities: Law of Ukraine dated 02/17/2011 No. 3038-VI. Update date: 08/06/2022. URL: <https://zakon.rada.gov.ua/laws/show/3038-17>
60. On building codes: Law of Ukraine dated 05.11.2009 No. 1704-VI. Update date: 09.06.2022. URL: <https://zakon.rada.gov.ua/laws/show/1704-17>
61. On liability for offenses in the field of urban planning activities: Law of Ukraine dated 14.10.1994 No. 208/94-BP. Update date: 01.12.2000. URL: <https://zakon.rada.gov.ua/laws/show/208/94-bp>
62. On Amendments to Certain Legislative Acts of Ukraine on Promoting Construction: Law of Ukraine dated 16.09.2008 No. 509-VII. Update date: 12.03.2011. URL: <https://zakon.rada.gov.ua/laws/show/509-17>
63. On copyright and related rights: Law of Ukraine dated 01.12.2022 No. 2811-IX. URL: <https://zakon.rada.gov.ua/laws/show/2811-20#Text>
64. On the Protection of Rights to Inventions and Utility Models: Law of Ukraine dated 15.12.1993 No. 3687-III as amended by the Law of Ukraine dated 05.12.2012. URL: <http://zakon2.rada.gov.ua/laws/show/3687-12>
65. On the Protection of Rights to Trademarks for Goods and Services: Law of Ukraine of December 15, 1993. URL: <http://zakon2.rada.gov.ua/laws/show/3689-12>
66. On inland water transport: Law of Ukraine of 03.12.2020 No. 1054-IX <https://zakon.rada.gov.ua/laws/show/1054-20#Text>
67. On the transit of goods: Law of Ukraine dated 20.10.1999 No. 1172-XIV. URL: <https://zakon.rada.gov.ua/laws/show/1172-14#Text>
68. Air Code of Ukraine: Law of Ukraine dated May 19, 2011 No. 3393-VI. URL: <https://zakon.rada.gov.ua/laws/show/3393-17#Text>.
69. On road transport: Law of Ukraine dated 05.04.2001 No. 2344-III. URL: <https://zakon.rada.gov.ua/laws/show/2344-14#Text>.

70. On railway transport: Law of Ukraine dated 04.07.1996 No. 273/96-BP. URL: [https://zakon.rada.gov.ua / laws / show /273/96-%D0%B2%D1%80](https://zakon.rada.gov.ua/laws/show/273/96-%D0%B2%D1%80).
71. On transport and forwarding activities: Law of Ukraine dated 01.07.2004 No. 1955-IV. URL: <https://zakon.rada.gov.ua/laws/show/1955-15#Text>
72. Budapest Convention on the Contract for the Carriage of Goods by Inland Waterways, 2001 URL: https://zakon.rada.gov.ua/laws/show/995_998
73. Merchant Shipping Code of Ukraine dated 23.05.1995 No. 176/95-BP. URL: <https://zakon.rada.gov.ua/laws/show/176/95-%D0%B2%D1%80>
74. Convention on the International Carriage of Passengers and Luggage by Road 1999. URL: https://zakon.rada.gov.ua/laws/show/997_034.
75. Convention on the Contract for the International Carriage of Goods by Road, 1956. URL: https://zakon.rada.gov.ua/laws/show/995_234.
76. UN Convention on the Carriage of Goods by Sea, 1978 (Hamburg Rules). URL: https://zakon.rada.gov.ua/laws/show/995_391
77. International Convention for the Unification of Certain Rules Relating to Bills of Lading, 1924 (as amended by the Protocol of 23.02.1968 and the Protocol of 21.12.1979). URL: https://zakon.rada.gov.ua/laws/show/995_221.
78. Statute of the Railways of Ukraine: Resolution of the Cabinet of Ministers of Ukraine dated April 6, 1998 No. 457. URL <https://zakon.rada.gov.ua/laws/show/457-98-%D0%BF#Text>
79. Convention on Independent Guarantees and Standby Letters of Credit: International document of 11.12.1995 URL: https://zakon.rada.gov.ua/laws/show/995_517#Text
80. On the procedure for compensation for damage caused to a citizen by illegal actions of bodies carrying out operational and investigative activities, bodies of pre-trial investigation, the prosecutor's office and the court: Law of Ukraine of 01.12.1994 No. 266/94-VR. URL: <https://zakon.rada.gov.ua/laws/show/266/94-%D0%B2%D1%80#Text>

81. On Civil Liability for Nuclear Damage and Its Financial Provision: Law of Ukraine dated 13.12.2001 No. 2893. URL: <https://zakon.rada.gov.ua/laws/show/2893-14/conv>

82. On approval of the list of documents by which debt collection is carried out in an undisputed manner on the basis of executive inscriptions of a notary: Resolution of the Cabinet of Ministers of Ukraine dated June 29, 1999 No. 1172. Update date: 04/28/2022. URL: <https://zakon.rada.gov.ua/laws/show/1172-99-%D0%BF#Text>

83. On approval of the Regulation on the procedure for holding auctions (public auctions) for the sale of pledged property: Resolution of the Cabinet of Ministers of Ukraine dated 12/22/1997 No. 1448. Update date: 06/03/2011. URL: <https://zakon.rada.gov.ua/laws/show/1448-97-%D0%BF#Text>

84. Procedure for determining the need, size and type of property security when granting credits (loans) attracted by the state or under state guarantees: Resolution of the Cabinet of Ministers of Ukraine No. 460 of 04/13/2011. Update date: 01/21/2012. URL: <https://zakon.rada.gov.ua/laws/show/460-2011-%D0%BF#Text>

85. On approval of the Procedure for performing notarial acts by notaries of Ukraine: Order of the Ministry of Justice of Ukraine dated 02/22/2012 No. 296/5. Update date: 05/21/2022. URL: <https://zakon.rada.gov.ua/laws/show/z0282-12#Text>

86. The procedure for conducting trading activities and rules for trade services in the consumer goods market: Resolution of the Cabinet of Ministers of Ukraine dated June 15, 2006 No. 833. URL: <http://zakon4.rada.gov.ua/laws/show/833-2006-%D0%BF>.

87. Rules for commission trade in non-food products: approved by order of the Ministry of Foreign Economic Relations and Trade of Ukraine dated March 13, 1995 No. 37. URL: <http://zakon2.rada.gov.ua/laws/show/z0079-95>.

88. Rules for installment trading for individuals: approved by Resolution of the Cabinet of Ministers of Ukraine dated March 30, 2011 No. 383. URL: <http://zakon2.rada.gov.ua/laws/show/383-2011-%D0%BF>

89. On approval of the Regulation on the procedure for conducting deposit operations by banks of Ukraine: Resolution of the National Bank of Ukraine dated 03.12.2003 No. 516. Update date: 01.07.2021. URL: <https://zakon.rada.gov.ua/laws/show/z1256-03#Text>

90. On the practice of applying legislation by courts in resolving disputes arising from credit legal relations: Resolution of the High Specialized Court of Ukraine for Civil and Criminal Cases No. 5 of 03/30/2012. Update date: 02/07/2014. URL: <http://zakon4.rada.gov.ua/laws/show/v0005740-12>

91. The procedure for renting housing with redemption: approved by the Resolution of the Cabinet of Ministers of Ukraine dated March 25, 2009 No. 274 / Official website Verkhov . Rada of Ukraine. Legislation of Ukraine. URL: <https://zakon.rada.gov.ua/laws/show/274-2009-п>.

92. UNIDROIT Convention on International Factoring: International document of 05/28/1988. Date of accession of Ukraine 01/11/2006. https://zakon.rada.gov.ua/laws/show/995_210#Text

93. Regulations on the procedure for banks to carry out operations with bills of exchange in the national currency on the territory of Ukraine: Resolution of the Board of the National Bank of Ukraine dated 16.12.2002 No. 508. Update date: 12.09.2018. URL: <https://zakon.rada.gov.ua/laws/show/z0174-03#Text>

94. Regulations on the procedure for banks to carry out operations under guarantees in national and foreign currencies: Resolution of the Board of the National Bank of Ukraine dated 15.12.2004 No. 639. Update date: URL: <https://zakon.rada.gov.ua/laws/show/z0041-05#Text>

95. The issue of commissioning completed construction facilities: Resolution of the Cabinet of Ministers of Ukraine dated 04/13/2011 No. 461. Update date: 07/12/2022. URL: <https://zakon.rada.gov.ua/laws/show/461-2011-п>

96. On approval of the General Conditions for the Conclusion and Execution of Contracts in Capital Construction: Resolution of the Cabinet of Ministers of Ukraine dated 01.08.2005 No. 668. Update date: 24.03.2021. URL: <https://zakon.rada.gov.ua/laws/show/668-2005-п>

97. On approval of the Procedure for issuing a construction passport for the development of a land plot: Order of the Ministry of Regional Development, Construction and Housing and Communal Services of Ukraine dated 05.07.2011 No. 103. Update date: 04.02.2022. URL: <https://zakon.rada.gov.ua/laws/show/z0902-11>

98. On approval of the Procedure for implementing state architectural and construction control: Resolution of the Cabinet of Ministers of Ukraine dated 05/23/2011 No. 553. Update date: 07/03/2021. URL: <https://zakon.rada.gov.ua/laws/show/553-2011-п>

99. On approval of the Procedure for planning, financing and control over the implementation and implementation of scientific research and development works: Order of the Ministry of Environment and Resources of Ukraine dated 07.11.2000 No. 187. Update date: 05.08.2011. URL: <https://zakon.rada.gov.ua/laws/show/z0878-00>

100. On approval of the rules for consumer services for the population: Resolution of the Cabinet of Ministers of Ukraine dated 05/16/1994 No. 313. Update date: 01/17/2014. URL: <https://zakon.rada.gov.ua/laws/show/313-94-п>

101. On approval of the Aviation Rules of Ukraine "Rules of Air Transportation and Service of Passengers and Baggage": Order of the State Aviation Service of Ukraine dated November 26, 2018 No. 1239. URL: <https://zakon.rada.gov.ua/laws/show/z0141-19>.

102. On approval of the Rules for Air Cargo Transportation: Order of the State Service of Ukraine for Supervision of Aviation Safety dated March 14, 2006 No. 186. URL: <https://zakon.rada.gov.ua/laws/show/z0705-06>.

103. Rules for the carriage of goods by road in Ukraine: approved by order of the Ministry of Transport of Ukraine dated 14.10.1997 No. 363. URL: <https://zakon.rada.gov.ua/laws/show/z0128-98#Text>

104. Rules for providing public transportation services by urban electric transport: approved by Resolution of the Cabinet of Ministers of Ukraine dated December 23, 2004 No. 1735. URL: <https://zakon.rada.gov.ua/laws/show/1735-2004-%D0%BF>.

105. .The procedure for providing services to citizens by rail transport: approved by the Resolution of the Cabinet of Ministers of Ukraine dated March 19, 1997 No. 252. URL: <https://zakon.rada.gov.ua/laws/show/252-97-%D0%BF#Text>

106. Rules for the carriage of passengers, baggage, cargo and mail by railway transport of Ukraine: approved by order of the Ministry of Transport and Communications of Ukraine dated 27.12.2006 No. 1196. URL: <https://zakon.rada.gov.ua/laws/show/z0310-07>.

107. Tax Code: Law of Ukraine dated 02.12.2010 No. 2755 VI. Legislation of Ukraine / Verkhovna Rada of Ukraine. URL: <https://zakon.rada.gov.ua/laws/show/2755-17>

108. Customs Code: Law of Ukraine dated 13.03.2012 No. 4495 VI. Legislation of Ukraine / Verkhovna Rada of Ukraine. URL: <https://zakon.rada.gov.ua/laws/show/4495-17>

109. Directive 2009/81/EC of 13 July 2009 on the coordination of procedures for the award of certain types of works contracts, supply contracts and service contracts in the fields of defence and security. URL : <https://eur-lex.europa.eu/eli/dir/2009/81/oj/eng>

110. Directive 2014/24/EU of 26 February 2014 on public procurement . URL: <https://eur-lex.europa.eu/eli/dir/2014/24/oj/eng>

111. Directive 2014/55/EU of 16 April 2014 on electronic invoicing (e-invoicing) in public procurement . URL: <https://eur-lex.europa.eu/legal-content/BG/TXT/?uri=CELEX:32014L0055>

112. Directive 93/13/EEC of 5 April 1993 on unfair terms in consumer contracts . URL: <https://eur-lex.europa.eu/legal-content/BG/TXT/?uri=CELEX:31993L0013>

113. Directive 2005/29/EC of 11 May 2005 concerning unfair business-to-consumer commercial practices in the internal market . URL: <https://eur-lex.europa.eu/legal-content/BG/TXT/?uri=CELEX:32005L0029>

114. Directive 2019/771 of 20 May 2019 on certain aspects concerning contracts for the sale of goods . URL : https://zakon.rada.gov.ua/laws/show/984_026-19#Text

115. Directive 2011/83/EU of 25 October 2011 on consumer rights . URL: https://zakon.rada.gov.ua/laws/show/984_023-11#Text

116. Directive 2013/36/EU of 26 June 2013 on access to the activity of credit institutions and the prudential supervision of credit institutions and investment firms . URL: https://zakon.rada.gov.ua/laws/show/984_036-13#Text

117. Directive 2014/49/EU of 16 April 2014 on deposit guarantee schemes . URL : https://zakon.rada.gov.ua/laws/show/984_050-14#Text

118. Directive 2015/2302 of 25 November 2015 on package travel and related travel arrangements . URL : <https://eur-lex.europa.eu/eli/dir/2015/2302/oj/eng>

Literature

Basic literature

1. Civil law (special part). Lecture course: teaching aids . / edited by I. Spisaby -Fateeva . – Kharkiv: EKUS, 2022. – 640 p.

2. Civil Law of Ukraine: a manual for passing the entrance exam for a master's degree in the external examination format / V. I. Borisova, K. Yu. Ivanova, B. P. Karnaukh, Yu. Ye. Khodiko. Kharkiv: Pravo, 2021. 396 p.

3. Civil Law of Ukraine. Part Two: A Guide to Preparing for Exams / V. I. Borisova, K. Yu. Ivanova, B. P. Karnaukh, Yu. Ye. Khodiko; edited by V. I. Borisova.

– 2nd ed., revised and supplemented. Kharkiv: Pravo, 2020. 246 p.

4. Civil law: textbook: in 2 volumes / V.I. Borisova (ed. author), L.M. Baranova, A.G. Biryukova and others.; edited by V. I. Borisova, I.V. Spisaby-Fateeva, V.L. Yarotsky.– 2nd ed., revised and supplemented. - Kh. :Pravo, 2014.- T.2. – 816 p.

5. Kharkovskaya civil school: about the contract: monograph / Sub Society ed. I. IN. Thank you Fateeva . - Kh.: Pravo, 2017, 576 p.

Additional literature

1. Civil Code of Ukraine: scientific-practical commentary / edited by I. V. Thank you- Fateeva . Vol. 7: General provisions on obligations and contracts: explanations, interpretations, recommendations using the positions of higher judicial authorities, Ministers of Justice, scientists, specialists / O. O. Banasko [and others]. Kharkiv: Stride : FO-P Lysyak L. S., 2012. 736 p.

2. Civil Code of Ukraine: scientific and practical commentary (explanations, interpretations, recommendations using the positions of higher courts, the Ministry of Justice, scientists, specialists). Vol. 8: Contracts on the transfer of property into ownership and use / edited by I. V. Spisaby-Fateeva . Kharkiv: FO-P Lysyak L. S., 2013. 672 p.

3. Civil Code of Ukraine: scientific and practical commentary: explanations, interpretations, recommendations using the positions of the highest judicial instances of Ukraine, scientists, specialists. Vol. 9, part II: Household contract. Construction contract. Contract for PP, NDR and SCTR / V. I. Krat , Yu. V. Mytsa and others. ; edited by I. V. Thank you- Fateeva . Kharkiv: EKUS, 2020. 328 p.

4. Civil Code of Ukraine: scientific and practical commentary: explanations, interpretations, recommendations using the positions of the highest judicial instances of Ukraine, scientists, specialists. Vol. 9, part III: Services. Transportation. Transport forwarding. Storage / S. E. Morozova, I. S. Lukasevich-Krutn and others. ; edited by I. V. Spisaby-Fateeva . Kharkiv: EKUS, 2020. 456 p.

5. Civil Code of Ukraine: scientific and practical commentary: explanations, interpretations, recommendations using the positions of the highest judicial instances of Ukraine, scientists, specialists. Vol. 9, part IV: Insurance, commission, commission, property management / I. V. Spisaby-Fateeva , V. P. Yanyshen , N. Yu. Golubeva and others. ; ed. I. V. Spisaby-Fateeva . Kharkiv: EKUS, 2020. 328 p.

6. Civil Code of Ukraine: scientific and practical commentary: explanations, interpretations, recommendations using the positions of the highest judicial instances of Ukraine, scientists, specialists. Vol. 10: Credit and settlement obligations. Commercial concession agreement. Joint activity agreement / I. V. Thank you- Fateeva , V. I. Krat , O. P. Pecheny, etc.; edited by I. V. Spasio-Fateeva . Kharkiv: Pravo, 2015. 496p.

7. Civil Code of Ukraine: scientific and practical commentary: explanations, interpretations, recommendations using the positions of the highest judicial instances of Ukraine, scientists, specialists. Vol. 11: Non-negotiable obligation / I. V. Thank you- Fateeva , L. M. Baranova, Yu. V. Baulin and others; edited by I. V. Spasio-Fateeva . Kharkiv: Pravo, 2014. 416 p.

8. Scientific and practical commentary to the Civil Code of Ukraine: in 2 volumes / edited by O. V. Dzery , N. S. Kuznetsova , V. V. Lutsya . Kyiv: Yurinkom Inter, 2019. Vol. 2. 1046 p. URL: http://irbis-nbuv.gov.ua/cgi-bin/irbis_nbuv/cgiirbis_64.exe?&I21DBN=EC&P21DBN=EC&S21STN=1&S21REF=10&S21FMT=fullwebr&C21COM=S&S21CNR=20&S21P01=0&S21P02=0&S21P03=I=&S21COLORTERMS=0&S21STR=B357775%2F2

9. Educational and methodological manual for practical classes and independent student work on the mandatory academic discipline "Civil Law of Ukraine" (Part 2) for students 3 course daytime forms teaching (first (bachelor's) equal higher education industries knowledge 08 "Right" specialties 081 "Law" of the educational and professional program "Law") / compiled by: V. I. Borisova, I. Y. Puchkovska and etc. Kharkiv : National Law . University named after Yaroslav Wise, 2020. 147 with.

10. Antonyuk, N. O., Hrynyshyn O. A. Criminal and legal protection of freedom of contract: monograph. Kyiv: Alerta : Legal Unity, 2020. 246 p.
11. Babich I.G. Proper performance of obligations and the principle of justice/ // *Journal of Civil Studies*. No. 16 2021 URL: <http://clj.nuoua.od.ua/archive/16/7.pdf>
12. Baranova L. M. Contract as a regulator of non-contractual obligations. *State construction and local self-government* : collection of scientific works / editors : S. G. Seryogin (chairman) and others . - Kharkiv : Law, 2022. No. 43. P. 342 -348.
13. Belyanovich , O. Current problems of concluding contracts at auctions. *Law of Ukraine* . 2022. N 5. P. 21-36.
14. Biryukova, A. Conditions for the set-off of counter-homogeneous claims. *Entrepreneurship, economy and law: scientific-practical economic -legal journal* 2019. No. 10. P. 4–10.
15. Biryukova A.G., Trust property as a way of ensuring the fulfillment of obligations: advantages and disadvantages. *Journal of Civil Law*. 2022. No. 45. pp. 23—28.
16. Biryukova, A. Dogovyr leasing in modern national and European legislation . *Current problems of the correlation and mutual influence of modern civil doctrine, legislation and law enforcement practice in Ukraine* : collection of articles to the 60th anniversary of Dr. Law . Sciences, Prof. V. L. Yarotsky / editors: V. V. Nadyon , T. O. Muzyka, Yu. M. Filonova . Odessa: Publishing House " Helvetics ", 2022.P. 243– 251.
17. Bodnar T.V. Fulfillment of contractual obligations in civil law: Monograph. – Kyiv: Yurinkom Inter, 2005. – 272 p.
18. Bosyak M., Posikira R. Mortgage 2021: legal conclusions. Lviv: ZUKC, 2021. 248 p.
19. Buyadzhi , G. V. Fiduciary institution as a type of security for obligations: concept, features, feasibility. *Entrepreneurship, economy and law: scientific-practical . economic-legal . journal*. 2018. No. 4. P. 21-27.

20. Vavzhenchuk , S. On the issue of classifying contracts into consensual and real contracts (part 2). *Entrepreneurship, economics and law* : scientific-practical economic -legal journal. 2020. N 10. Pp. 11-15.
21. Vavzhenchuk , S. On the issue of classifying contracts into unilateral and mutual, pecuniary and gratuitous . *Entrepreneurship, economics and law* : scientific-practical . economics-law . journal. 2021. N 6. P. 5-10.
- 22.Vavzhenchuk , S. Ya. On the issue of classifying contracts into consensual and real contracts . *Problems of legality* : collection of scientific works 2020. Issue 148. Pp. 45-51.
23. Vavzhenchuk , S. Ya. The essence and methods of classifying contracts. *Problems of legality* : collection of scientific works 2019. Issue 147. Pp. 58-65.
24. Verhelyuk Yu. The potential of using blockchain technologies in the financial market. *Economy and Society*. 2022. No. 38. URL: <https://doi.org/10.32782/2524-0072/2022-38-15> .
25. Gaidulin O. O. Europeanization of Contract Law: Monograph. – Kyiv: KNEU, 2012. 293 p.
- 26.Davydova I.V. On the question of interpreting the content of the contract. *Journal of Civil Studies*. 2022. No. 23. P. 22-25. URL: <http://dspace.onua.edu.ua/bitstream/handle/11300/9104/22-25.pdf.pdf?sequence=1&isAllowed=y>
- 27.Donets A.G. Virtual Asset Storage Agreement (Crypto Custody) under the legislation of Ukraine. *Theory and practice of law*. Electronic scientometric professional publication of the Yaroslav the Wise National University. 2022. Volume 2 No. 22.
28. Dzyakhar , G. I. The concept, legal nature and types of factoring contracts. *Law and Society*. 2017. No. 4. Pp. 83–88.
29. Zemskova O. Civil liability under a contract for the carriage of dangerous goods. *Entrepreneurship, economics and law*: scientific-practical . economic-legal . journal. 2019. N 3. P. 21-25.

30. Zhdankina , L. K. The legal nature of the set-off of counter-homogeneous claims as a method of terminating a civil obligation. *Law and public administration* . 2017. No. 4. P. 60-67.

31. Isaev A.M. Civil-legal characteristics of the electronic money emission agreement // Memories of a person, a scientist, a researcher (to the 60th anniversary of the birth of prof. Iryna Volodymyrivna Zhilinkova) / Public org. "League of prof. law, doctors of law and doctors of philosophy in the field of law"; under the general editorship of R. O. Stefanchuk . – Kharkiv: Law, 2019. – 288p.

32. Kanzafarova I. S., Fedorko M. S. The right of trust property as a way of ensuring the fulfillment of obligations in the civil law of Ukraine . *Legal State*. 2020. No. 37. Pp. 107 - 116.

33. Karnaukh B.P. Faults in tort law: from ancient Roman jurisprudence to the theory of economic analysis of law . *Roman law through the prism of tradition and judicial practice* : monograph / edited by I.V. Spisaby-Fateeva . Kharkiv: EKUS, 2022, pp. 427-438.

34. Kolisnikova G. Current problems in the sphere of consumer rights protection during martial law . . *Current problems of the correlation and mutual influence of modern civil doctrine, legislation and law enforcement practice in Ukraine* : collection of articles to the 60th anniversary of Dr. Law . Sciences, Prof. V. L. Yarotsky / editors: V. V. Nadyon , T. O. Muzyka, Yu. M. Filonova . Odessa: Publishing House " Helvetica ", 2022. P. 334-341.

35. Korneev Yu. Transport Law of Ukraine: a textbook . Kyiv: Center for Educational Literature, 2019. 168 p.

36. Korobtsova N. V. Legal regulation of trust property in foreign countries and Ukraine. *Entrepreneurship, economy and law*. 2020. No. 5. P. 19 - 22.

37. Korobtsova N., Zasyadivko Yu., Legal regulation of trust property in foreign countries and Ukraine. *Entrepreneurship, economy and law* : scientific-practical economic -law journal. 2020. No. 5. pp. 19-22.

38. Korobtsova N.V. Compensation for moral damage in contractual obligations: analysis of law enforcement practice . *Young Scientist*. No. 4 (92) Apr. 2021. Pp. 102 – 105.

39. Korobtsova N.V. Analysis of the legal nature of the contract for personalized storage of anatomical material by a biobank . *Legal scientific electronic journal* : electronic scientific professional edition No. 4. 2021. P. 265 - 268. URL: <http://www.lsej.org.ua>.

40. Korobtsova N.V. Defects of will when concluding contracts for the provision of medical services. *Scientific notes of the V. I. Vernadsky Tavrichesky National University* . 2021. No. 1. Vol. 32 (71). Pp. 29-33.

41. Lukasevich-Krutnyk I. Unilateral refusal of the contract of carriage as a consequence of violation of contractual terms. *Entrepreneurship, economics and law* : scientific-practical economic -legal journal. 2019. No. 2. pp. 30-35.

42. Maslova-Yurchenko K. Underwriting Agreement under the Law of Ukraine through Ten Years of Scientific Cooperation. *Current Problems of the Correlation and Mutual Influence of Modern Civil Doctrine, Legislation and Law Enforcement Practice in Ukraine* : Collection of Articles to the 60th Anniversary of Dr. Law . Sciences, Prof. V. L. Yarotsky / Compiled by: V. V. Nadyon , T. O. Muzyka, Yu. M. Filonova . Odessa: Helvetika Publishing House , 2022. P. 386-396.

43. Martyniuk, L. P. Problems of innovation as a way of terminating obligations. *Legal State*. 2017. No. 28. Pp. 139–143.

44. Martyniuk Y.V. Methods of self-protection of civil rights in contractual obligations. *New Ukrainian Law* . 2022. No. 1. P. 208-214.

45. International transportation: theory and practice: textbook : in 2 books / A. S. Galkin, V. P. Levada, Yu. A. Davidich , N. V. Davidich , K. E. Vakulenko. Kharkiv. National University of Urban Economics named after O. M. Beketov . Kharkiv: KhNUMG named after O. M. Beketov , 2018. 182 p.

46. Milovska , N. Electronic form of concluding insurance contracts. *Entrepreneurship, economics and law* : scientific-practical economic -legal journal. 2020. N 11. - P. 34-41.

47. Melnikov L. Yu. Liability for breach of obligations: concept, types and forms of implementation: *The 12 th International scientific and practical conference "Modern directions of scientific research development"* (May 18-20, 2022) BoScience Publisher, Chicago , USA. 2022. 930 p. (p. 899).

48. Moroz, O. V. Acceptance as a stage of concluding a civil law contract. *Law and Innovations*. 2020. N 2. P. 45-49.

49. Moroz, O. V. Proposal to conclude a civil law contract. *Law and Innovations*. 2019. N 2. P. 83-88.

50. Morozov, E. A deed committed under the influence of deception. *Legal Bulletin of Ukraine*. 2020. N 16/17 (April 24-May 7). P. 22.

51. Moroz, M. Regarding the termination of obligations by offsetting against of uniform requirements in the bankruptcy procedure . *Current problems of the correlation and mutual influence of modern civil doctrine, legislation and law enforcement practice in Ukraine* : collection of articles to the 60th anniversary of Dr. Law . Sciences, Prof. V. L. Yarotsky / editors: V. V. Nadyon , T. O. Muzyka, Yu. M. Filonova . Odessa: Publishing House " Helvetics ", 2022. pp. 285– 294.

52. Muzyka T. O. Alternative obligations and evaluative concepts in civil law as manifestations of the principles of dispositivity in the context of the requirements of certainty of legal regulation. *Current problems of the correlation and mutual influence of modern civil doctrine, legislation and law enforcement practice in Ukraine* : collection of articles to the 60th anniversary of Dr. Law . Sciences, Prof. V. L. Yarotsky / editors: V. V. Nadyon , T. O. Muzyka, Yu. M. Filonova . Odessa: Publishing House " Helvetica ", 2022. P. 397– 407.

53. Nadyon V. Civil-legal aspect of distinguishing a loan agreement from other types of agreements (loan, gift, rental of a vehicle, housing, rental agreement, commercial concession). *Analytical and comparative law* . 2021. No. 4. Pp. 64-70.

54. Nadion V. Liability in private law [chapter 14]. Legal regulation of the economic system: institutions, rules, procedures: monograph / edited by prof. M. V. Savchyna . Odessa: Publishing house " Helvetics ", 2021. P. 663-711.

55. Invalidity of legal acts. Commentary on judicial practice / edited by I.V. Spisaby-Fateeva . Kharkiv: Pravo, 2018. 264 p.

56. Parkhomenko, A. Electronic reality: [Proving the reality of concluding an electronic contract in court]. *Jurist . practice* : gaz. ukr. yuristov . 2021. N 23/24(June 15). P. 21.

57. Pylypenko, S. Peculiarities of legal regulation of relations under a contract concluded in electronic form. *Entrepreneurship, economics and law* : scientific-practical economic -legal journal. 2020. N 8. Pp. 48-53.

58. Popov V.A. Legal principles of transportation of dangerous goods. . *Current problems of correlation and mutual influence of modern civil doctrine, legislation and law enforcement practice in Ukraine* : collection of articles to the 60th anniversary of Dr. Law . Sciences, Prof. V. L. Yarotsky / compilers: V. V. Nadyon , T. O. Muzyka, Yu. M. Filonova . Odessa: Publishing House " Helvetics ", 2022. P. 408- 423.

59. Posikira R. Mortgage: a practical guide for a lawyer. Lviv: ZUKC, 2017. 453 p.

60. Primak , V. Termination of the contract as a method of civil legal protection in crisis conditions. *Entrepreneurship, economy and law* : scientific-practical economic -legal journal. 2020. No. 5. P. 43-49.

61. Puchkovska I. Y. Theoretical problems of securing obligations : monograph. Kharkiv : Right, 2017. 472 p.

62. Puchkovska I.Y. On the protective function of types of security for the performance of obligations. On the protective function on the types of ensuring the obligation fulfillment . *Visegrad Journal on Human Rights* . – 2019.- No. 4.- S. 181-185.

63. Puchkovska I. Y. On the main purpose of types of security for the performance of obligations. *Problems of legality* . - 2020.- Issue 148.- P. 36-44.

64. Puchkovska I.Y. On the issue of eviction of residents when foreclosing on mortgaged property. *Theory and practice of law: electronic scientific professional edition*. – 2019. – Issue 2 (16). – P. 1-12.

65. Puchkovska , IY, Biliaiev , OO, Yanyshen , VP, Urazova , HO Effectiveness of the consumer protection system upon purchasing goods in online stores // *Journal of the National Academy of Legal Science of Ukraine* *this link is disabled* . – 2021. – 28(1). – P. 137–146.

66. Iryna Y. Puchkovska , Oleg P. Pecheniy and Arsen M. Isaiev . « Ensuring the fulfillment of contracts in civil law » // *International Journal of Criminology and Sociology* . – Volume 9. – 2020. – P. 3040–3047.

67. Rasskazova , V. Legal features of relations with the severance pay. *Entrepreneurship, economy and law* : scientific-practical economic -legal journal. 2019. No. 5. P. 55–59.

68. Rasskazova , V. V. The Place and Significance of Compensation in the Civil Law of Ukraine. *Comparative Analytical Law* . 2018. No. 5. Pp. 147–149.

69. Financial services markets: theory, methods, tools and practice: a textbook / edited by S. G. Shklyaruk . Kyiv: SE "Publishing house "Personal", 2018. 528 p.

70. Financial Services Market: Textbook / Prykazyuk N. V. et al.; edited by N. V. Prykazyuk . Kyiv: Yamchynskyi O. V., 2019. 756 p.

71. Sloma V.M. Participation of third parties in ensuring the fulfillment of obligations. *Jurnalul legal național : theory and practice* , 2019 No. 9. URL: <http://www.jurnaluljuridic.in.ua/archive/2019/5/23.pdf>

72. Sysuev Sergey Regarding the Contra principle Proferentem in the new Civil Code of Ukraine. *Yurydychna Gazeta*. February 01, 2021 No. . URL: <https://yur-gazeta.com/publications/practice/civilne-pravo/shchodo-principu-contra-proferentem-u-novomu-civilnomu-kodeksi-ukrayini.html>

73. Skakun, Yu. The legal nature and characteristic features of relations in the insurance sphere . *Current problems of the correlation and mutual influence of modern civil doctrine, legislation and law enforcement practice in Ukraine* :

collection of articles to the 60th anniversary of Dr. Law . Sciences, Prof. V. L. Yarotsky / editors: V. V. Nadyon , T. O. Muzyka, Yu. M. Filonova . Odessa: Publishing House " Gelvetika ", 2022. P.432 – 440.

74.Skrypnyk V. Transport services in the system of objects of civil law. *Entrepreneurship, economics and law* : scientific-practical . economics-law . journal. 2020. N 5. P. 50-55.

75.Solovyov B.O. Peculiarities of the civil liability of a railway carrier for the loss of cargo. *Journal of the Kyiv University of Law*. 2019. N 2. P. 250-255.

76. Thank you-Fateeva I. V. The importance of state registration for acquiring ownership of real estate. *Law of Ukraine* . 2020. No. 11. P. 127-141.

77. Thank you-Fateeva I.V. The influence of the term on the contractual obligation . *Small encyclopedia of the notary* . 2006. No. 1. –P. 27 – 31.

78. Tashyan R. I. Special grounds for the invalidity of legal acts during war. *New Ukrainian Law*. 2022. No. 3. P. 49-52.

79. Tovkun I. Conclusion of a supply contract in a simplified form: based on case law. *Entrepreneurship, economics and law* : scientific-practical economic - legal journal. 2021. No. 5. pp. 40-44.

80. Unification of European contract law and prospects for adapting Ukrainian legislation to EU law / Theoretical and practical problems of legal support for socio-economic and political development of society and the state: Monograph / Opryshko V.F., Shulzhenko F.P., Gaidulin O.O. and others; - Kyiv: KNEU, 2006. - pp. 669 - 684.

81.Filatova N. Yu., Logoiko O. O. Comparative analysis of the features of concluding electronic contracts in Ukraine and Germany: legal aspects. *Rule of Law*. 2020. Issue 38. Pp. 92– 100

82.Filatova N.Yu. Transactions using electronic forms of information presentation. *Problems of legality*. 2017. Issue 136. Pp. 40-55.

83.Filatova, N. Yu. Regulation of the features of concluding electronic contracts: comparative legal analysis. *Problems of legality* : collection of scientific works, 2017. Issue 139. Pp. 63-77.

84. Fedorchenko N. V. Penalty as a method of ensuring the fulfillment of contractual obligations for the provision of services. *Private Law and Entrepreneurship* . 2019. Issue 19. Pp. 141–145.

85. Khodiko Yu. Ye. Peculiarities of the legal regime of the object of an obligatory legal relationship. *Law and Society*. No. 6(1). 2018. Pp. 84-88.

86. Khodiko Yu. E. The legal regime of the result of works and services as objects of civil legal relations: their unity and differentiation. *Law and Society* . 2019. No. 3. Pp. 139-144.

87. Khodiko Yu. Ye. On understanding the essence of the result of works and services as objects of civil legal relations. *Law and Society*. 2019. No. 6. Pp. 122-128.

88. Khodyryeva , A. Enforcement of foreclosure on property transferred into trust ownership: some issues. *Entrepreneurship, economy and law : scientific-practical economic -legal journal*. 2021. No. 2. P. 21-25.

89. Chayka-Petegirych L. B. Multimodal and intermodal cargo transportation in the system of international transport logistics. *Scientific Bulletin of Uzhhorod National University*. Series: International Economic Relations and World Economy. Issue 33. Part 2. 2020. P. 114-117.

90. Shimon, L. S. The security mechanism of the guarantee. *KELM (Knowledge , Education , Law , Management)* . 2020. No. 4. P. 128–132.

91. Shimon, L. S. On the recognition of insurance as a personal form of securing the performance of obligations. *Prykarpatskyi yuridichnyi visnyk*. 2018. No. 4. P. 152–154.

92. Yanyshen V. P. Peculiarities of the implementation of consumer rights under a contract for the performance of works (provision of services) *Theory and practice of law*: Electronic scientific professional publication of the Yaroslav the Wise National Law University. – 2017. – No. 2 (12) URL: <http://tlaw.nlu.edu.ua/issue/view/7110>

93. Yanyshen V. P. Legislative support for the restoration of crediting / V. P. Yanyshen . *Theory and practice of law*: Electronic scientific professional

publication of the Yaroslav Mudryi New Law University, 2018. Issue 2 (14).
URL:<http://tlaw.nlu.edu.ua/article/view/149536/148935>

94. Yanyshen V. P. The Law of Ukraine "On Consumer Lending": New Standards for Protecting Borrowers' Rights. *Problems of Legality* . 2017. Issue 139. Pp. 52 - 62.

95. Yanyshen V. P. Legal principles of protecting the rights of consumers of financial services. *Theory and practice of law* 2019. Issue 2 (16). URL: <http://tlaw.nlu.edu.ua/article/view/186027>

96. Yanovytska A.V. Contract for the International Carriage of Goods by Road: Monograph. Lviv. Rastr-7. 2019. 179 p.

97. Yashchenko V.A. Principles and rules of interpretation of the contract. *Scientific Bulletin of the Lviv State University of Internal Affairs* , 2017 No. 1. URL: https://www.lvduvs.edu.ua/documents_pdf/visnyky/nvsv/01_2017/14.pdf

98. Lando O. Some Features of the Law of Contract in the Third Millennium // *Scandinavian Studies in Law* . 2000. No. 40. R. 343–402.

Internet resources:

Unified State Register of Court Decisions. URL: <http://reyestr.court.gov.ua>

Official website of the European Union. URL: <http://europa.eu>

Official web portal of the Verkhovna Rada of Ukraine. URL: <http://rada.gov.ua/>

Official web portal of the President of Ukraine. URL: <http://www.president.gov.ua>

Official web portal of the Cabinet of Ministers of Ukraine. URL: <http://www.kmu.gov.ua>

Official web portal of the Constitutional Court of Ukraine. URL: <https://ccu.gov.ua/>

Official web portal of the Supreme Court. URL: https://supreme.court.gov.ua/supreme/gromadyanam/perelik_sprav/

Official web portal of the Ministry of Justice of Ukraine. URL:

<https://minjust.gov.ua/>

Official web portal of the National Bank of Ukraine . URL:

<https://portal.bank.gov.ua/>

SENMK

Standardized electronic educational and methodological complex of the Department of Civil Law No. 1. URL: <https://library.nlu.edu.ua/senmk/item/222-tsyvilne-pravo-ukrainy-1-chastyna.html>

Standardized electronic educational and methodological complex of the Department of Civil Law No. 2. URL: <https://library.nlu.edu.ua/senmk/item/229-tsyvilne-pravo-ukrainy-1-chastyna.html>

Official EU Law Web Portal "EUR-LEX" <https://eur-lex.europa.eu/>

Official web portal of the Court of Justice of the EU "CURIA"
<https://curia.europa.eu/>